Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Regular Meeting of October 18, 2017

A meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commissiontii@r Village of Lemont was held at 6:30
p.m. on Wednesday, October 18, 2017 in the sedond Board Room of the Village Hall, 418
Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Spinelli called the meeting to order 86.m. He then led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

B. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present: Cunningham, Glomp, McGleam, Zolecki, 8pin
Absent: Forzley and Plahm

Community Development Director Jason Berry, ComsgllPlanner Jamie Tate and
Village Trustee Ron Stapleton were also present.

C. Approval of Minutes: September 20, 2017 Meeting

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
approve the minutes from September 20, 2017 mewtithgno changes. A voice
vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS

Chairman Spinelli greeted the audience. He thkadsveryone in the audience to
stand and raise his/her right hand. He then adteired the oath.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. 17-12 1250 W. 13¥ Court Annexation and Rezoning

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tiubl hearing.

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@ission Glomp to open the

public hearing for Case 17-12. A voice vote w&eita
Ayes. All



Nays: None
Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jason Berry, Community Development Director, shid hearing is an annexation
and rezoning. Itis a large size lot that is catigein unincorporated Cook County.
They are looking to be annexed into the Village aodnect to water and sewer. It
meets all the standards for R-4 and the reasotihdéoR-4 zoning is to allow flexibility
with site design. There are a number of easenaentse property. There is a little
one on the front half of it for utilities and thasea lake on the corner. There are a
few conditions for parkway sidewalk and canopydre&hey did discuss potentially
some issues surrounding the connection to utilitlegblic Works is looking into it
and staff does not feel it is an issue at this time

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any question staff at this time. None
responded. He then asked if the applicant wamtedake a presentation.

Applicant Presentation

John Antonopoulos, attorney for the applicant estataff has covered all their
concerns. They are looking for approval so theymave forward to the Village
Board.

Chairman Spinelli clarified that it was for a siegamily structure on the lot and
there is no indication to split the lot.

Mr. Antonopoulos said it is a single-family house.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any questfonshe applicant. None
responded. He then asked if there was anyoneiautience that wanted to speak in
regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

None
Chairman Spinelli then called for a motion to cltise public hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to close
the public hearing. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. Zolecki, Cunningham, McGleam, Glomp, Spinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion




Chairman Spinelli asked if the Commission had amiher comments regarding this
public hearing. None responded. He then calleé fmotion for recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@issioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees apahCase 17-12 1250 W.
132" Court Annexation and Rezoning with the followirenditions:

1. Owners will install parkway and sidewalk pursuantXDO 17:26.110 and
17:26.120 at time of building permit.

2. Owners will install parkway canopy trees per UDbl€al7-20-01 at time of
building permit.

3. The property owners confirm in writing that theyllwit object to any future
Special Assessment or Special Service Area shbale te a need to extend
utilities.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes. Zolecki, Cunningham, McGleam Glomp, Spinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion for FindingfsFact.

Commissioner Glomp made a motion, seconded by Cesimwmer McGleam to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 17-12 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

B. 14-12 Donegal PUD and Preliminary Plat

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tiubl hearing for Case 14-12.
Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
open the public hearing for Case 14-12. A voiceewaas taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said the applicatias last heard on February 1,
2017 which it was continued and that continuatiaa éxpired. It was republished
and the applicant has revised the engineeringtifigland landscape plans, provided
renderings for the proposed screening and met sdtie conditions outlined by the



PZC and Village staff. Alan Stefaniak is representhe contract purchaser and
lessee of the project. He has filed the applicetay this PUD and preliminary plat
of subdivision approval for an industrial developmiacluding concrete
crushing/recycling, contractors’ office, truck pids concrete batching plant,
construction demolition debris recycling, and otredated uses. Staff recommends
approval with numerous conditions.

The property has been the subject of two sepamateulits. The first one was filed
against the Village by the then property owner&isggeto invalidate a previous
annexation of the property, which was annexed Jgri#y 2009. It was then
rezoned to M-3 which was done on August 10, 20lkere was a following lawsuit
which was filed by the city of Willow Springs. Tlal court dismissed it and it was
upheld in the lllinois Appellate Court. They atdél stating that there is potential
challenge with it as far as any results or outcomiéls this project, it has to be
considered.

Mrs. Tate said the Technical Review Committee (TR@)mitted questions to the
applicant and they were raising concerns over tbpgsed land uses, lot coverage,
traffic, site access, parking, landscaping, ligtiarchitecture, signage, and utilities.
Staff recommended that the applicant submit adaiticnformation which they have
done and a lot of the responses to those commeamtsrovided in the packet from a
letter from Mr. Stefaniak.

She then showed on the overhead a breakdown thieadlifferent lots. The current
PUD application includes several different usevanious lots. Lot 1 is currently
improved with a truck wash and repair building @droposed to remain as-is for
now. Lot 2 is improved with a home/office thatytae looking to expand and also
modify. It will also be a truck maintenance fagibind add parking for his
employees/visitors, as well as parking for his éavghicles/equipment. Lots 7 and 8
are separated by the railroad right-of-way and firoposed to be “small contractor’s
storage yards”. Lot 6, located on the east sideaifte 83 and north of the ROW, is
proposed to continue to be semi-truck parking amaré parking area of the
contractors’ trucks and equipment.

East of Route 83, south of the ROW, Lot 3 is prepofer a concrete batching plant.
Lot 4 is proposed for a concrete crushing and sangeplant. Lot 5 is proposed for a
construction and demolition debris recycling fagili The easternmost part of Lot 5 is
designated as the area for a stormwater deteraolity. In addition to the uses
detailed on the site plan, the applicant has reéqdeslist of other variations from the
UDO.

Mrs. Tate stated as far as PUD’s go, in the deveény ordinance they allow for
flexibility if it is intended to encourage developnt that is more environmentally
sensitive, economically viable and aestheticalgaging than might otherwise be
under the strict adherences to zoning districeadards. This lot and site is



completely unique therefore you are going to seaeswariances that might have to
go through.

The first variance is to the minimum front yardosetk which is currently 40 feet.
The applicant wants to convert the existing ressg@emwhich currently goes in the
Grant Road ROW. The applicant wants to removepbéion that is not on the
property, and provide a significant addition to btuelding. Therefore, the front of
the building will be at the zero setback. Staifif this deviation acceptable due to
the size of the building and the proximity to GrRatad. Due to the uniqueness of
the site, staff is accepting with using the exgtiiuilding where it stands. This is a
unique property with non-traditional lot sizes atdpes therefore setbacks are
difficult to maintain.

Mrs. Tate said the next variance is maximum lotecage. They do go over their
coverage at about 87%. Staff finds this deviatioceptable as the existing lot
coverage is 97.2%. The application is proposingdaiction of about 10% in lot
coverage. Additionally, they are providing storneradetention for the site. A
variance for maximum plans to height is being rastjf@r the concrete silo for
recycling which is going to be a maximum heigh60ffeet. The proposed height is a
50% variation from the standard. However, staffi§i the deviation acceptable as the
applicant is proposing to screen the site from B@3

There are some landscaping standards that theyoagoing to be able to meet. Part
is planting the amount of plants per linear feéEhis is acceptable as the site is
constrained and the applicant has revised themrspia include one plant unit per 100
feet. There have been comments made by the lgmelscasultant as well, that as far
as what they are proposing they want it to be &blast and thrive as well. Similar is
the variance for landscaping the exterior of pagkats. Staff finds this also
acceptable. Although the applicant does not nieetDO standard, the site is
constrained and additional landscaping may not baeeigh separation to thrive.
The truck, equipment, and contractor vehicle andpgent parking areas have no
proposed exterior landscaping. Staff finds thiseptable as long as the applicant
places a fence along the ROW to screen these areas.

Mrs. Tate stated there is a variation for maximwempgssible sound levels. All
proposed equipment besides the finger screen ex¢kedJDO limit. Staff finds this
acceptable as the noise emitted from the trai@® BB and there are no residential
uses within a half mile. They are also askingaf@ariation for a wall sign. Staff
finds this acceptable as well. Their signs arscale with the building and
architecture.

The proposed use is consistent with the Comprete®dan. The Plan designates
this are as Industrial which is “a well-designee $hat include suitable building with
functional features, screening for outdoor storag equipment, and landscaping to
create street-side ‘curb appeal’. Since indusamal manufacturing uses are often
local employment centers new development in thsridt will provide non-



motorized access for local employees.” There werepportunities for any non-
motorized access, so staff was really pushing ¥ Inaore of curb appeal and for
heavy screening especially from Route 83. In thagpthat they have provided they
are showing the different screening options thay tave been working with IDOT
on for Route 83.

Mrs. Tate said there is consistency with the PU[@dlves. Inthe code there are 11
different objectives to be achieved through planmeiti development; however, only
four are applicable to this project. She thertisthe four objectives which are listed
in the staff report. The subject site is neighbddrg either recreational land uses or
other industrial land uses. Generally, continuetuistrial use of the site is
compatible with surrounding land uses. Prior is the site was a junkyard and was
in complete disarray. The site is highly visibdepassersby and users of nearby
recreational facilities and the proposed use inetthat is thought of as visually
appealing, it is better than what was there.

The applicant has submitted a traffic study. ONeitavas determined that the
adjacent roadways already have high traffic coantkthis proposed project will
have less than a 1% increase on the traffic. fdfgd study was expanded to review
the internal private road system. It was deterchiioebe sized to accommodate the
proposed traffic. Additionally the use of signdgethe culvert crossing is proposed
to be incorporated into the site plans. Althougg $ite plans were not updated to
include these signs, the applicant has indicatatthey will comply.

Mrs. Tate stated the proposed PUD is for heavystrdl uses that require significant
outdoor operations. The subject site is locateél high visibility from Route 83
which has a high volume of traffic. Therefore, sy proper landscaping aesthetic
control is important and a main concern of stdtfie applicant did provide a site line
analysis to demonstrate the views of the CC&D wdnddnitigated by a landscaped
berm. The analysis also indicates that the coa@is will be visible from Route
83. Per staff's recommendation, the applicant @aggred IDOT to provide screening
from Route 83. The proposed screening signifigastteens select portions of the
site from Route 83.

The Village Arborist reviewed the application arated that the proposed plants are
suitable for the industrial site. The applicans hecreased the amount of landscaping
for parking lots. The lots are still deficient indahe UDO standards; however the
applicant is proposing to utilize fencing along tn@lge to screen portions of the site.
The Arborist had no concerns with the use of fegpalong the railroad tracks.

In regards to site design, lot 6 is shown as tparking. The farthest east portion of
the site is not indicated for truck parking anéhicated just as a gravel area. Staff
is recommending that if the applicant is not utigthe area it should be landscaped
or fenced to prevent trucks from parking in theaar&he applicant does not wish to
landscape this area rather to keep it in its ndttiaée. The triangular lot south of Lot
5 is not labeled or indicated for use. Howeveg,dhplicant must indicate how this



lot will be maintained per the Municipal Code.islthe recommendation of staff that
the screening option discussed between the appbeahlDOT be utilized to the
fullest extent possible. Accordingly, should sachoption not be available for any
reason, the previously discussed berming and sageéocated in the site should be
provided as a backup option.

Mrs. Tate said the applicant is proposing two badd and one structure on the
property. The applicant is proposing the office émuck maintenance building on
Lot 2, an existing truck wash and repair buildinglmt1, and a proposed equipment
storage structure is shown on Lot 1. EFIS is psedoon the truck maintenance and
office portion of the building. While the use ofE is discouraged, the amount and
location of the proposed EFIS on this particulaitdmog is acceptable. The UDO
prevents metal paneling to be used in M-Distridthe applicant is proposing a
limited amount of metal paneling that attachesnie¢al canopy for the entrance of
the office portion of the building. Staff findsitHimited use acceptable as the
majority of the metal is for the canopy and notphenary building.

An equipment storage building is indicated on L@akt of the existing truck wash
and repair building. The applicant has providedaip information indicating that
the existing building will be resided to improvesthppearance of the building.
Additionally, the building has been determined ¢t Ine wholly located on the
applicant’s property. The applicant is proposio@liow the building to remain on
their property for three (3) years and at the efrthat period move the building or
demolish the structure. Staff is recommending lsinto the existing building on Lot
2 that it be moved to avoid further infringementaother property or obtain the
right from the neighboring owners to continue te tisat property.

Mrs. Tate stated that the Village Engineer hachiircomments. There is no sewer
or portable water in the area. Cook County wlibhalthe construction of a well. It is
unknown whether a septic system exists at theesifaghily residence, which the
applicant intends to remodel for his office usée Engineer also indicates there are
changes needed for the Final Plat of Subdivisibime Fire Marshal also provided
comments dated October 4, 2017 which have beendadn the packet. They do
require sprinkler systems and the applicant wi#dhéo demonstrate the ability to
provide water for sprinklers. The Fire Marshahliso recommending that the truck
parking on Lot 6 be restricted to the eastern portif the site to prevent trucks from
parking on that portion of the lot that may previnet truck access. The Police
Department did provide comments as well. Theya@wking for signs and signals on
the culvert crossing.

Lastly, the conclusion and recommendations, thene\81 conditions and they have
9 remaining to address. She then read the 9 r@mgasonditions and what the
applicant’s response was to that item. They werlttions 9, 11, 12, 18, 21, 22, 29,
30, 31. She said this would conclude staff's pnesg@n.



Chairman Spinelli said he noticed that our Vill&yggineer’s letter is dated March 6,
2017. He asked if this was due to the fact thatite plan was not revised and there
was no need to review it again.

Mrs. Tate stated there are still outstanding conteiand the last comment letter was
given in March which are from the plans that werersitted in February. The only
updated full engineering plans that were donelaa@wo sheets that were submitted
in the packet for the building. Staff is still wiag for updated engineering plans.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the engineer'smo@ents have been addressed.
Mrs. Tate said not since the March comment letdaaas she knows.

Chairman Spinelli said in regards to Lot 7, onghe plan it is listed as Lots 7 and 8.
He wanted to clarify that it is an 8 lot subdivisioHe then asked if the applicant
provided evidence that they have permission fro@TRo cross beneath the Route
83 bridge.

Mrs. Tate stated she could not find that in thekptic She has asked the applicant for
that information which has not been obtained.

Commissioner McGleam asked if the Village has atjpmson accepting
responsibility for the maintenance of the screening

Mr. Berry, Community Development Director, saidytfae reluctant but it is
important. The screening is more important thatiaintenance for this site.

Commissioner McGleam stated if they do not havdigoation from the Village that
they will accept the maintenance then it is nahm plan.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorerd any questions for staff at
this time. None responded. He then asked thacapplto come up and make a
presentation at this time.

Applicant Presentation

Paul Greco, Attorney, said he is filling in for M3tefaniak. He then introduced his
team that were present with him this evening. héaked staff for their detail
presentation. The correction in regards to lots e@rect and the lot is Lot 7 and 8.
The first question they should address is the sangewhich is also in the packet. It
would be the blue fins coming off of Route 83.réxgards to the access for
underneath Route 83, they do have access becasgmit of their property.

Mr. Kevin Egan, Route 83 Properties, LLC, stateziithave done a lot of title
research and going over easements. Apparentiprdperty under Route 83 is part



of the property that they would be purchasing. ylth@ve granted easements to IDOT
and it is not the other way around.

Mr. Greco said the title company has confirmed.this
Chairman Spinelli stated if that is the case tiendrawings need to be updated.

Mr. Greco said they can address any questionghbafommission might have
regarding the remaining 9 conditions that are lefe knows that the plans need to be
updated, however they were looking for approvabtbetioing that.

Chairman Spinelli asked staff if all the items thes listed in staff's report as
resolved have been completed because they are yioqplIThere are items that are
listed as resolved but they are not meeting thelitons.

Mr. Berry stated they have offered a resolutiorttmse. Staff feels in regards to
noise, the operation itself cannot get any quief#r this type of operation. Staff
feels it is resolved based on the location andahe use.

Chairman Spinelli said it is misleading by sayihgttthe items are resolved when
they are not. With the landscaping, it is not heso, they are presenting that they
cannot do anymore landscaping because it is athparvious area and that may be
the case. It is not technically resolved so it igquires a variance.

Mr. Berry stated it is resolved with those variagdhat were presented at the
beginning of staff's presentation.

Commissioner Zolecki said he just wanted to clasidyne roles with this project. He
asked what is Linden Group and Universal Manhadgtaole in the project.

Mr. Egan stated Linden Group put through the sie lendering and Universal
Manhattan is the architect for the office buildisiygdp addition.

Commissioner Zolecki asked who is the architeceobrd.

Mr. Greco said for the building it is Universal Mattan, the engineer for the project
is Hoefferle-Butler Engineering.

Commissioner Zolecki asked if Linden Group or Unsa¢ Manhattan were present
this evening.

Mr. Egan stated they are not, but the engineereisgmt.
Chairman Spinelli asked how are they going to actess 7 and 8 with trucks. He

understands that they have the crossing undertigatiail but it opens up right at the
property line. He asked if there were cross aceasements on the unincorporated



Cook County side. Based on the auto turn exHilait tvas received you will not be
able to get trucks underneath that crossing anceradlrn that close to the rail.

Mr. Egan said they have cross access easemertatgoroperty.

Chairman Spinelli stated then that needs to beigedvto the Village. He has a hard
time approving a development that he has not sexaf pf access. All of the
documents that were provided do not show any inidicahat there is access off of
the property north of Lots 7 and 8.

John Hoefferle, Engineer, said he does not hasipossession any easement
provisions, but he believes the other attorney laatbeen working on the land
portion with the surveyor has that information.

Mr. Egan stated those spaces are not intendedtradier trailer parking, but rather
small contractor.

Chairman Spinelli said a six wheeler and a traisnot make that turn. For record
and staff, if this moves beyond the Plan Commisdiois has to be resolved prior to
going to Village Board. Unless it can be provest tifnere is cross access easements,
you cannot leave the property to come back on tbpgrty without those easements.
That is also a big problem for everything on thst s&de of Route 83. These
easements have to be provided to show that thaxxess to the east side of the

property.

Mr. Greco stated he believes the easement agregm@enin existence but have not
been provided in detail to staff.

Chairman Spinelli said then they need to be praliidethe Village. In regards to

page eight on the far east end, it was recommetind¢dhe eastern end be landscaped
because the fire department does not want vehiclels there. He understands the
concern with landscaping and he would actuallygagrebmething more permanent
than landscaping. He would recommend that whatineedistance is determined that
either 8 inch concrete filled bollards be placedhsd trucks can't ignore the
landscaping and start creeping into that arearerliseanother property along Route
83 that has apparently been filling their propairtg slowly expanding their land into
wetlands, so he would like something more permanent

Mr. Egan stated that they would work somethingwith staff.

Commissioner McGleam asked what is the timing éortiodification to the building
that is on the road right-of-way.

Mr. Egan said they have already submitted for thling permit for that remodel
and addition.

10



Commissioner Zolecki stated the reason why he agkéaiversal was here was
because at the last meeting he had talked aboditimmnumber 20. The choice of
EFIS for the building is a bad choice and it wal .emolished in a couple of years.

Mr. Egan said it is something that they can worthwtaff on and maybe they do
poured concrete walls up to a certain height.

Commissioner McGleam asked about metal.
Commissioner Zolecki stated it is not allowed ardds to be updated.

Mr. Berry said he feels it would be an acceptalaleation from the code if steel
panels were proposed.

Commissioner Zolecki stated at the last meetingethes a lot of discussion
regarding the renderings showing the site lineschvare appreciated. He feels what
they have provided does not show the views of w@atevelopment will look like
with the fencing and the fins.

Mr. Egan showed on the overhead the fencing arsdalsnyou would head south and
north bound on Route 83. They varied the screematgrials based on the direction
of traffic and where the stoplights were locat®¥dhere traffic stops more often they
used a solid chain link with the slats versus tethibound using the fins where the
traffic is moving. IDOT has given preliminary appal on this.

Commissioner Zolecki said he would have liked tensa rendering showing the
views with the property.

Chairman Spinelli asked why all the drawings shbevgilos immediately adjacent to
Route 83. He asked if they could be closer taa@&D pile.

Mr. Egan stated it is probably just a scale issu¢hat drawing. He showed on his
drawing where the bridge was located and whersitbe are going to be.

Chairman Spinelli asked what are they going tosiegufor access for Fire and
Police.

Mr. Egan said they will have an access card readéithey will issue those to the
Fire and Police.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheestions for the applicant from the
Commission. None responded. He then asked igthas anyone in the audience
that wanted to speak in regards to this hearing.

Public Comment

11



Ron Stapleton, Trustee for the Village of Lemoskexd with condition number 24,
which shows as resolved, how long is the leasdeillboard and will it need to be
bought back or paid.

Mr. Egan said it is his understanding that thedeas those billboards are month to
month at this point. Nobody that he knows hasredéd a long term lease.

Chairman Spinelli asked the applicant, all the gehat have been listed as resolved
by staff, they agree to whatever the conditiony theve listed.

Mr. Greco stated they are in agreement.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elsaeraudience that wanted to speak
in regards to this hearing. None responded. He #sked if there were any further
guestions from the Commission.

Commissioner McGleam asked if there was anythirntherecommendations in
regards to the timing of the demolition and thestarction of the building that is in
the right-of-way.

Mr. Berry said it was not included.

Commissioner McGleam stated then it should be acwwdition.

Mr. Greco said it would be fine with the applicant.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheestions or comments from the
Commission or from the audience. None respondtithen called for a motion to
close the public hearing.

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byrGigsioner Glomp to close
the public hearing for Case 14-12. A voice vota vaken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli stated according to the stafbrethey have narrowed the
conditions down from 31 to 9. He is torn aboutihgwhis proceed only because
there are numerous conditions out there, but véhsitoijpping him is that they have
heard this case many times. They are getting cls@ he does not feel that there is
a better use for this area which meets the CompesePlan. As far as the
variances for lot coverages, they need to providersvater management that
complies with the Village and MWRD. It is basigadliready 100% impervious right
now. He believes that the outstanding items carebelved. The biggest concern

12



that he has is the applicant providing proof thatytcan access their property east of
Route 83. If this does move forward, he cautidves\illage Board on their potential
approval process, without the applicant provingeasdo the eastside of Route 83.
They don’t have access to Archer Avenue through Esbnight-of-way. If there is

an easement for that he does not feel that theydweant this batching operation
coming out through there.

Commissioner McGleam asked if there was a requinetmat IDOT has to approve
the screening on Route 83.

Mr. Berry said yes.

Commissioner McGleam asked if the Village accelpesmhaintenance
responsibilities, what options do they have fordeeeloper to provide funding for
that.

Mr. Berry stated there could be a maintenance bond.

Commissioner McGleam said it needs to go beyondwtieal three year
maintenance period.

Chairman Spinelli stated he agreed.

Commissioner Glomp said he likes what they areglbegre and appreciates them
cleaning it up.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was any furtheng@nts or questions from the
Commission. None responded. He then called faotion for recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahCase 14-12 Final PUD
and Preliminary Plat, including the conditions neatkn staff’'s report as resolved (1-
8, 10, 13-17, 19, 20, 23-28), in addition to theedeper’s resolutions to conditions 9,
11, 12, 18, 21, 22, 29-31, with the following cdrahs added:

1. The owner is to produce ownership documents dematimg} ingress/egress
access by a way of recorded easement.

2. The applicant is to begin renovation of the propaosiice building that is
currently on Lot 2 and removing the portion of thelding that is currently on
the existing right-of-way.

3. The Village is to work with the applicant to setupallowance to cover future
maintenance costs for the screening on Route 83.

13



4. The developer must install a permanent physicaldyaat the east end of Lot 6.
Acceptable barriers could be eight inch concrékedfibollards or a double high
guardrail.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes. McGleam, Cunningham, Zolecki, Glomp, Spinelli

Nays: None

Motion passed

Commissioner Glomp made a motion, seconded by Cesmwmer McGleam to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 14-12 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None

Motion passed

ACTION ITEMS

Mr. Berry said there are two items on the agendadat month.

GENERAL DISCUSSION

A. Update from Village Board

Mr. Berry stated that the Village Board just re¢gapproved the Mayfair Estates.
They released the Letter of Credit. Due to thgtlemf time it took to get to this
point it was past the maintenance period so thiagél waived the maintenance
period and accepted the improvements. Derby Ren&tdl working on getting an
easement from Ruffled Feathers.

Chairman Spinelli asked if Ruffled Feathers haslzgeen to this.

Mr. Berry said no but they are still attemptinggeet the easement.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there has been any éartliscussion between the Village
Attorney and staff with their Homeowner’'s Assomatregarding the concern he has
raised about public utilities not having an easeimen

Mr. Berry stated there has not been any discussi@ihe knows of.

Commissioner McGleam stated that should be goimgarallel with that developer.
Discussion continued regarding easements with puiblities.

Chairman Spinelli said lllinois Bar and Grill hasde some changes to their

electronic sign, however they have continued teeltae flashing on the sign. He
stated their noncompliance with their sign is gdimgnake it rough for approval of

14



VI.

VII.

any future electronic signs. Enforcing the cowmdhisi that are set on these signs is
very difficult.

Mr. Berry stated code enforcement has been oug thigleast three times and has
talked with the property owner.

Discussion continued in regards as to how to eefeanditions for electronic signs.
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None

ADJOURMENT

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to adjoure theeting.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes. All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

15



